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CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Joe Simon

Director, Environment, Health, Safety and Energy
Abbott Laboratories

Department 05G2, Building M1

1401 Sheridan Road

North Chicago, Illinois 60064-6299

Re: Abbott Laboratories
Administrative Consent Order EPA-5-11-113(a)-{L-10

Dear Mr. Simon:

Enclosed is an executed original of the Administrative Consent Order regarding the above-
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Brent Marable
Chief
Air Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Section (IL/IN)

Enclosure: ~ Administrative Consent Order EPA-5-11-113(a)-IL-10

cc: Ray Pilapil, Air Quality Division
lllinois Environmental Protection Agency
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 5
1n the Matter of: ) EPA-5-11-113(a)-1L-10
) .
Abbott Laboratories )  Proceeding Under Sections 1 13(a)(3)
North Chicago, llinois ) and 114(u)(1) of the Clean Air Act
)  42US.C. §§ 7413(a)(3)
) and 7414(a)(1)
)
)
)
)
Adminigtrative Consent Order
L. The Director of thc Air and Radiation Division, U.S. Environmental Protection

Agency. Region 5. is issuing this Order to Abbott Laboratories (Abbott) under
Sn.:ctions 113(a)(3) and 1 14(a}(1) of the Clean Air Act (the Act). 42 U.S.C. §§ 7413(a)(3) and
7414(a)(1).
Statutory and Regulatory Background

2. Under Section 112 of the Act. 42 U.S.C. § 7412. EPA promulgatcd the National
Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutams (NESHAP) for Pharmaceuticals Production
(Subpart GGG) a1 40 C.F.R. §§ 1250 through 126]1. The NESHAF for Phannaccuticals
Production applies 1o operations that manufacture o pharmaceuticul product. are a major source
and process. use or produce hazardous air pollutanis (1 LAPs).

3. The Pharmaceuticuls Production NESHAP, at 40 C.F.R. § 63.1254(g){3)(i). states

that tor existing sources, “...uncontrolled HAP emissions {rom a process vent mus! be reduced

by 98 percent ...”

4. The General Provisions bf the NESHAP, at 40 C.F.R. § 63.6()(13(1), state that.

Al al} times. including periods of startup. shuidown. and malfunction. the owner or operator



must operate and maintain any affected source. including associated air pollution control
equipment and monitoring equtpment, in a manner consistcnt with safcty and good air pollution
control practices for minimizing emissions.”

‘5. Under Section [13(a)(3) of the Act. 42 U.S.C. § 7413(a)(3). the Administrator of
EPA may issue an order requiring compliance to any person who has violated or is violating the
NESHAP regulations. in EPA, Region 5. the Administrator has delegated this suthority to the
Director of the Air and Radiation Division.

6. The Administrator of EPA may require any person who owns or operates an

emission source 10 make reponis and provide information required by the Administrator
under Section Fd{aX!) of the Act. 42 U.S.C. § 7414(a)(1). The‘Administrmor has delcgated

this authority to the Director of the Air and Radiation Division.

Findings

7. Abbott ovvns and operatcs a pharmaceutical manufacturing plant at
1401 Sheridan Road in North Chicago. lllinois {facility).

8. Abbott manufactures bulk pharmaceutical active ingredients by fermentation and
chetnical synthesis: is a major source of carbon monoxide. nitrogen oxides. particulatc matcr
fess than 10 micrometers in diameter. suifur dioxide. volatile organic material and hazardous air
potlutant (HAP) emissions: und provesses, uses or produces HAPs. Thus. Abbott is subject to
the Pharmaceuticals Production NESHAP.

9, Abbott owns and opcrates an “cmission source™ within the meaning of

Section 1 14(a) 1) of the Act. 42 U.S.C. § 7414(a)(1). Therefore. Abbott is subject 1o the

requirements of Section 114(aX1).



10.  Dichloromethane (also known us methylene chloride) is a HAP that is used at
Abbott in a pharmaceutical manufacturing process that produces antibiotics, such as
erythromycin, via a fermentation baich process.

11.  Abbott controls dichloromethane emissions from its pharmaceutical
manufacturing process with a carbon bed adsorption system. This is a three-bed system that
typically operates with one bed in adsorption mode, a second bed in regeneration/cool-tdown
mode and the third bed in standby mode.

12.  OnJanuary 24, 201}, EPA issucd to Abbott a Notice of Violation/Finding of
Violatton (NOV/FOV) allcging that Abbott violated the Pharmaceuticals Production NESHAP
because dichloromethane emissions from a process vent were not reduced by 98 percent on
January 23 and 24, 2010, in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 63.1254(a)(3)(i).

13.  In addition to the ubove-mentioned allegation, during the malfunction that
occurred at the automatic control system for carbon bed adsorption system operation on
January 23 and 24, 2010, EPA alleges that Abboit did not operate and maintain its
pharmaccutical manufacturing process emission sources and carbon bed adsorption system in a
manner consistent with safety and good air pollution control practices for minimizing emissions
in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 63.6(e)(1)(i) because Abbott failed to:

. a. Check the status of timer alarm, fault and shutdown conditions along with
any other alarms during each shifl so as to prevent excess emissions;
b. Comply with its stanup, shutdown and malfunction plan (SSM Plan) by
not porting emissions to the two other adsorbers 1o prevent the use of the

malfunctioning adsorber until it was operating properly;



c. Comply with its SSM Plan by not taking actions to shut down the
pharmaceutical manufecturing process equipment wher; therc was a
malfunction and excess emissions were being released to the atmosphere;
and

d. Have an adequate alarm system in place to provide effective .
cummunication to staff to prevent excess emissions.

EPA finds that fatlure to follow good air pollution control practices resulted in a

release of 3,000 pounds of dichloromethane in a 16.8-hour period.

14.  On February 24, 2011, representaiives of Abbott and EPA discussed the
January 24, 2011 NOV/FOV.

15.  EPA alleges that Abbott violated the Pharmaceuticals Production NESHAP
40 C.F.R. § 63.1254(a)(3 D).

Compliance Program
16. By the etfective date of this Order, Abbott must achieve, demonstrate and
“maintain compliance with the Pharmaceuticals Production NESHAP at its North Chicago,

linots facility.

17.  Abbout shall operate such that if any of the fault conditions listed below accur on

any of the three carbon beds, the carbon bed adsorption system will switch from a 3-bud 10 2-bed

operation mode:
a Bed or inlet or outlet valves are not in the required position:
b. The minimum bed stcam temperature for regeneration is not achieved;
¢ The maximum bed cooling temperature for cooling is not achieved;
d. The cooling blower fails during cooling sequences; or



€. Low steam flow rate.

18.  Abbott shall operate such that il a faull condition con.tinues or another fault
condition occurs on any of the three carbon beds while the carbon bed adsorption system isin a
2-bed mode of operation, the carbon bed adsorption system and the entire associated
pharmaceutical manufacturing processes {including all emission units) will shut down.

19.  Abbott shall operate such that if any of the shutdown conditions lisied below
occur on any of the three carbon beds, the catbon bed adsorption system and the entire associated

phamaceutical manufacturing processes (including all emission units) will shut down:

a. Solvent laden air blower stops;
b. Cooling water supply valve is not in correct position:
c. Decanter solvent pump stops:

d. Any fault occurs while operating in a 2-bed mode;

e A fully regenerated carbon bed is not available for adsorption;

f. A timer fault/alarm condition exists. such as the adsorption timer does not
decrement;
g High solvent level in decanter:

High water level in decanter;
i A rupture disk inl.egrily sensor indicates a failure; o
j- High condenser vent temperature; or
k.  High dccanter temperature.
20.  During a shutdown. Abbott shall stop all emission units and related motors, vents.
blowers. valves, heating/cooling operations, etc. in the pharmaceutical manufacturing process
such that all emissions are isolated and confined in the piping systcm and not released to the

atmasphere.



2].  Abbott shall stan the carbon bed adsorption system and ensure a properly
regenerated carbon bed is available prior to the stanup of the phunnnéeuticnl manufacturing
process emission units.

22.  Abbott shail continue to opertate under & changed system logic such that in the
case a lault condition is detected, there will not be a period during which the system is
conftrming that condltions are appropriate to switch to using a different carbon bed: i.c.
swiltching to use a different carbon bed will be instanianeous. 1f after the switch another fault
condition or a shutdown condition is detected, Abbou shall shut down the carbon bed adsorption
system and the entire associated pharmaceutical manufacturing processes (including all emission
units).

23.  Abbon shall check the status of timer alarms. fault and shutdown conditions along
with any other alarms during each shifi, which means the status checks will minimally occur
every elght hours. Abbott shall maintain a {og of the status checks. Abbout shall submit to EPA
threc months of status logs within 30-days afier the end of the three-month perio& for a year after
the effeciive date of this Order.

24.  Abbon shall ensure all pharmaceutical manufacturing process employees with
responsibility for the carbon bed ad;v.orplion system are (rained to maintain a status check log of
the system and properly respond to an alarm notiftcation. Employees shall also be trained in the
procedure of performing a manual shutdown of the pharmaceutical manufacturing process and
carbon bed adsorption sysicm.

25.  Abbon shall perform a preventative maintenance inspection on the alanm system
at inimum once every menth and make adjusiments on the system as necessary 5o as to

Lo

minimize system failure in the future. Afier this Ocder terminates, Abbott shall perform



preventative maintenance inspections at minimum nccdrding to best engineering judgment that is
based on the manufacturer’s recommendation for preventative maintcnance frequency.

26.  Abbott shali perform a preventative maintenance inspection on the carbon bed
adsorplion system at minimum once every month and make adjusiments andfor rei:lncc
components on the system as necessary so as to minimize system failure in the future. After this
Order terminates. Abbott shall perform preventative maintenance inspections at minimum
according to best engineering judgment that is based on the manufacturer’s recommendation for
preventative maintenance frequency.

27.  Abborn shall update i1s SSM Plan so that it includes the provisions outlined in the
Compliance Plan of this Order. The revised SSM shall be submitted to EPA within § months of
the effective date of this Order.

28.  Abbott shall maintain a log of the dates. times. duration and causes of the carbon
bed adsorption system switching from a 3-bed to 2-bed operation mode. Abbott shal! submit to
EPA three months ol these logs within 30-days after the end of a three-month period for a yeur
after the effective date of this Order.

29.  Abbott shall maintain a log of the dates, limes, duration and causes a varbon bed
edsorption system shutdown. Abbott shall submit to EPA three months of these logs within 30-
days after the end of n three-montlt period for a year afler the efTective date of this Order.

30.  Abbott must send all reporis required by this Crder and under Section {1d(a){(1)
ot the Act. 42 US.C. § 7414(a){(1) t0:

Antcntion: Compliance Tracker (AE-17J)
Air Enforccment and Compliance Assurance Branch
U.S. Environmcnta! Protection Agency, Region 5

77 W. Jackson Boulevard
Chicngo. lliinois 60604



Genersal Provisions

31, This Order does not affect Abbort’s responsibitity to comply with other federal,
state and local laws.

32.  This Order does not restrict EPA's authority to enforce the NESHAP or any other
section of the Act.

33.  Nothing in this Order limits the EPA's authority 10 seck appropriate relief,
tncluding penaliies, under Section 113 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413, for Abbot's violation of the
Pharmaceuticals Production NESHAP.

34.  Failure 10 comply with this Order may subject Abbott 10 penalties of up to
$32.500 per day for each violation under Section 113 of the Ac1. 42 U.S.C. § 7413. and
40 C.F.R. Part 19,

35.  The terms of this Order are binding on Abbolt, its assignees and successors.
Abbott must give notice of this Order to any successors in interest prior to transferring owmrsﬁip
and must simultaneously venify to EPA, ot the above address, that it has given the notice.

36. A'bbon may assert a claim of business confidentiality under 40 C.F.R. Part 2,
Subpan B, for eny portion of the information submitted 10 EPA. Information subject 1o a
business confidentiality claim is availnbic 10 the public only 1o the exient ailowed by 40 C.F.R.
Part 2. Subpart B. 1f Abbott fails to assert a business confidentiality claim, EPA may make all
subrmitted informalfon available, without ﬁxnl;er natice. 10 any member of the public who
requests it. Emission daia provided under Section 114 of the Act. 42 U.S.C. § 7414. ts not

cntitled 1o confidential treatment under 40 C.F.R. Part 2, Subpﬁn B. “Emission daa” is defined

a1 40 C.F.R. § 2.301.



37.  ‘This order is not subject 10 the Paperwork Reduction Act, 44 U.S.C. § 3501
el seq., because it seeks collcction of information by an agency from specific individuals nr
¢ntities as part of an administrative action or investigation. To aid in our electronic
recordkeeping efforts, please tumish an elecironic copy on CD or thumb drive. If not possible,
provide your response to this Order without staples; paper clips and binder clips, however, are

acceptable.

38. - Abbott neither admits nor denies the facis alleged in the Findings section of this
Order.

39, EPA may use any information submitted under this Order in an administrative,
civil judicial or criminal action.

40.  Abbou agrees to the terms of this Order,

41.  This Order is effeciive on the date of signawre by the Director of the Air and
Radintion Division. This Order will ierminatc one ycar from the effeciive daic, provided that

Abbott has complied with all 1erms of the Order throughout its duration.

{
Dace Robert D. Morrison
Divisional Vice President, Environmental,
Health, Safety and Energy
Abbou Laboraloties

e

Daie

Air und Radiation Division



CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

[, Betty Williams, certify that | sent an executed original of the Administrative Consent

Order, EPA Order No. EPA-5-11-113(a)-1L-10, by certified mail, return receipt requested, to:

Joe Simon

Director, Environment, Health, Safety and Energy
Abbott Laboratories

Department 05G2, Building M1

1401 Sheridan Road

North Chicago, 1llinois 60064-6299

| also certify that 1 sent a copy of the executed original of the Administrative Consent

Order by First-Class Mail to:

Ray Pilapil, Chief
Bureau of Air
. Compliance and Enforcement Section

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency
1021 North Grand Avenue East

Springfield, lllinois 62702

on the ﬂday of ﬂ%/ 2011.

Betty AVilliams
Administrative Program Assistant
Planning and Administration Section

CERTIFIED MAIL RECEIPT NUMBER: 7009 /480 00007672 76% H[




